
1 
 

 

  
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Meeting to be held at the 

Oak View Resource Center 
555 Mahoney Avenue 
Oak View, CA 93022 

July 26, 2017 @ 3:00 P.M. 
 

Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
 
1. Public comments (Items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
     
2. General Manager comments. 
 
3. Board of Director comments.   
 
4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 
 
5. Consent Agenda 
  

a. Minutes from the July 12, 2017 meeting. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda. 
 
6. Review of District Accounts Payable Report for the Period of 7/06/17 - 

7/19/17. 
 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving report. 
 
 
 



2 
 

7. Recommend approval of an agreement with Water System Consulting in 
the not to exceed amount of $220,968 for the Ojai System Water Master 
Plan and Condition Assessment. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Motion approving recommendation 
 
8. Verbal Update on the District Office Remodel. 
  
9. Information Items: 
 

a. Recreation Committee Minutes. 
b. Recreation Area Report for May 2017. 
c. Recreation Area Report for June 2017.   
d. Investment Report. 

 
10. Adjournment. 
 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in 
this meeting, please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-
2251, ext. 113.  (Govt. Code Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 



1 
 

 
 

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 

July 12, 2017 
 

A meeting of the Board of Directors was held July 12, 2017 at the Oak View 
Resource Center located at 555 Mahoney Ave. in Oak View, California. The 
meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. Directors Baggerly, Hicks, Bergen and 
Kaiser were present. Director Word was absent. Also present were Mike Flood, 
Assistant General Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and Attorney, 
John Mathews.  There were four staff members and four members of the public 
in attendance.  President Baggerly led the group in the flag salute. 

  
 
1. Public comments (Items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
 

None 
     
2. General Manager comments. 
 

Mr. Flood mentioned that Mr. Wickstrum will return on the 24th and will be 
here for the meeting on the 26th.  He reported that water use has increased 
marginally with Ag being the biggest user which is not too surprising given the 
hot weather.  Conservation efforts are still in full swing.  President Baggerly 
suggested adding another line for the Ojai system for water consumption with Mr. 
Flood replying that we can discuss that.  He went on to inform the board that we 
have been chasing leaks in the Ojai system over the last couple of weeks.  Our 
crews are performing very well getting those taken care of and we had a minor 
electrical situation at a well site that we are working on getting repaired. 
 

Director Hicks asked how many meters are in so far.  Mr. Flood explained 
that the project has not started.  Notices will go out in the next few days and that 
will allow them to start in the next couple of weeks.  There will be five crews on 
that job and it will be September before that is finished.  We have the meters that 
we need, the contractor has not started yet. 
 
3. Board of Director comments.   
 

Director Kaiser reported that he had been in Alaska this last week and it 
was nice to see rivers and streams.  He expressed concern regarding possible 
fire restrictions in the recreation area.  Park Services Manager Belser informed 
that board that we rely on USFS to support us and give us guidance.  Even last 



2 
 

year it had not reached that threshold of no fires at all. We held training a month 
ago with county fire and we have a new communication system on what we may 
need to do.  We have not reached the need for restrictions but it could reach that.  
Director Kaiser suggested that perhaps this could be discussed in recreation 
committee.  There was further discussion regarding use of helicopters and 
planes to scoop water from the lake to fight fires.  Ms. Belser reminded the board 
that there is a policy in place for the helicopters and there is a desire to create a 
MOU for the scoopers.  They do thermal decontamination and would only use the 
lake if we have a high water level.   Director Hicks felt there should be a minimum 
amount of water in the lake and expressed concerns over providing water at this 
lake level. 
 

President Baggerly mentioned that Bill Warner with the Ojai Valley News 
is going to retire and we will miss his journalism.  President Baggerly then 
informed the board of the passing of Paul Herzog who was involved in the 
environmental arena and suggested that we adjourn in his memory. 
 
4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 
 

Director Hicks attended the watershed update on fish passage and 
instream flow with a speaker from Humboldt state.  It was interesting and he was 
startled to learn that a steelhead has to lay 800 eggs before they get a full grown 
fish on average.  He also attended the AWA board meeting and mentioned that 
the Reagan library event will be a good opportunity to view the Titanic display  
 

Director Bergen attended the watershed meeting and spoke about the 
analysis of USGS data on flows from early 1900’s.   
 

Director Kaiser met with Tico Mutual Water District. They are considering 
being taken over by one of the larger districts.  Good discussion on the issues 
and finances and bringing up to standards. 
 
5. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 
  

a. Minutes from the June 28, 2017 meeting. 
 

The consent agenda was offered by Director Hicks, seconded by Director 
Kaiser and adopted by the following roll call vote: 

 
AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Baggerly  

  NOES: Directors: None 
 ABSENT: Directors: Word 

 
6. Review of District Accounts Payable Report for the Period of 6/22/17 - 

7/05/17.        APPROVED 
 



3 
 

 Director Hicks questioned the payment to Oscar Tree Service.  Ms. Belser 
informed that board that was for the removal of many trees in campground C for 
the safety of campers.  They took out about 62 trees.  
 
 On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Bergen, the 
accounts payable report was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: Word 
 
7. Recommendation to revise the Snowbird Program Fees for Lake Casitas 

Recreation Area. 
 

a. Public hearing regarding revision to fees and charges for the Lake 
Casitas Recreation Area Snowbird Program. 

 
Director Baggerly stated this is the time and place for a hearing to 

consider input from the public regarding proposed changes to fees and charges 
for the snowbird program and adoption of the Notice of Exemption.  He asked for 
names of members of the public who had provided comments regarding the 
proposed changes.  The Clerk of the Board responded there were none.  He then 
asked for the managers’ report.  Park Services Manager Carol Belser reported 
that this was discussed in the Recreation Committee and these are fees that 
were recommended by the committee.  There are strict protocols on the program 
and it has been in existence for about ten years and the fees are based on other 
fees that have been raised in the last calendar year. 

 
President Baggerly opened the public hearing at 3:19 p.m. and asked for 

any public comments.  Seeing none, he closed the public hearing at 3:20 p.m. 
 
b. Resolution approving the preliminary assessment for the 

restructuring and revision in fees and charges for the Lake Casitas 
Recreation Area and adopting the Notice of Exemption. 

ADOPTED 
  
 The resolution was offered by Director Kaiser, seconded by Director 
Bergen and adopted by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: Word 
 
8. Consideration to update the Rules and Regulations for the Public Use of 

the Lake Casitas Recreation Area repealing Ordinance 16-01 and 
adopting Ordinance 17-01.      ADOPTED 



4 
 

Ms. Belser discussed the recommended changes to the ordinance that 
were reviewed with the Recreation Committee.  The board discussed if there was 
a need to include language excluding other animals and it was determined that 
could be addressed at a later time. 
 
 The ordinance was offered by Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Hicks 
and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: Word 
 
9. Recommend approval of a payment to CalPERS in the amount of 

$282,528 for Unfunded Accrued Liability.   APPROVED 
 
   
 On the motion of Director Bergen, seconded by Director Hicks, the above 
recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: Word 
 
10. Recommend approval of a purchase order to E.H. Wachs in the amount of 

$64,570.32 for a valve operation and maintenance system mounted on a 
trailer.         APPROVED 

 
 On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Bergen, the above 
recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: Word 
 
11. Recommend approval of a contract with Milner-Villa Consulting in the 

amount of $27,800 to provide for the preparation of a Retail Urban Water 
Management Plan.       APPROVED 

 
 On the motion of Director Kaiser, seconded by Director Hicks, the above 
recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: Word 
 
12. Discussion regarding the proposed Board Room facilities. 
 



5 
 

 The board discussed the proposed board room design with Neil Cole. 
Director Kaiser suggested an additional exit or panic door on the south side.  Mr. 
Cole explained that when we looked at that about ten years ago on the bottom 
floor there was a cost of about $45,000.  On the second floor it would probably 
cost about $70,000. 
 
 On the motion of Director Bergen, seconded by Director Hicks direction 
was given to staff to proceed with the current design which was approved by the 
following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: Word 
 
13. Recommend approval of a Letter of Support for Prop 1 Grant Funding for 

Matilija Dam Ecosystem Restoration Project – Santa Ana Bridge 
Replacement.       APPROVED 

 
 On the motion of Director Bergen, seconded by Director Hicks the above 
recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Kaiser, Bergen, Hicks, Baggerly  
  NOES: Directors: None 

 ABSENT: Directors: Word 
 
14. Information Items: 
 

a. Water Conservation Update for June 2017. 
b. Water Resources Minutes. 
c. Water Consumption Report. 
d. CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Cost Analysis. 
e. Investment Report. 

 
On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Bergen, the 
information items were approved for filing. 
 

15. Adjournment. 
 
 President Baggerly adjourned the meeting at 3:57 p.m. in memory of Paul 
Herzog. 
 
 
       _______________________ 
       Bill Hicks, Secretary 













































CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVEN WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 
FROM: LINDSAY CAO, CIVIL ENGINEER 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO SIGN PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES AGREEMENT – CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
OJAI SYSTEM WATER MASTER PLAN AND CONDITION 
ASSESSMENT 

DATE: 7/26/2017 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to sign 
the professional services agreement with Water System Consulting, Inc. (WSC) in the 
amount not to exceed $220,968.   
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
On June 8, 2017, Casitas acquired the Ojai assets  of Golden State Water Company, 
now referred to as the Ojai Water System. To ensure a seamless transition of the Ojai 
Water System, it is necessary to perform a Condition Assessment Study (CAS), so the 
District will understand the condition of the assets it acquired and have a 
comprehensive plan to manage the Ojai Water System going forward.  The project 
includes a review of the condition of all acquired assets, a hydraulic model of the 
system, an engineering assessment of the capability of the system to meet current and 
future water demands and identification of areas that need replacement or 
improvements.   Based on the results of CAS, a Master Plan with three-year and 10-
year capital programs for the Ojai Water System will be prepared. 
 
Request for qualifications was advertised on the District’s web site, and four firms 
submitted Statement of Qualifications (SOQ). After staff’s careful qualification based 
review and evaluation, WSC was selected. 
     
PROPOSAL RESULTS: 
 
Funding for this project is included as part of the Ojai System Capital budget for FY 
2017-18. 
 
 



Agreement for Engineering Services 
 
 

 
 1 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT & 

WATERWORKS ENGINEERS 
FOR  

CONDITION ASSESSMENT OF DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM, MASTER PLAN, & 3 AND 10 YEAR 
CAPITAL BUDGETS 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this              day of         in the year 2017 by 
and between the CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT, herein designated as the 
DISTRICT, and Water Systems Consulting, Inc. herein designated as the CONSULTANT. 
 

W I T N E S S E T H 
 

WHEREAS, the District issued a request for qualification to provide  a Condition 
Assessment Study and Master Plan for the Ojai System 
 

WHEREAS, the Consultant submitted a proposal dated July 19, 2017 to complete the 
required scope of work; and 
 

WHEREAS, District desires and Consultant is willing to provide the professional services 
requested; and 

 
WHEREAS, Consultant is well qualified to complete the design services; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of their mutual promises, obligations and covenants 

herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
1. TERM OF AGREEMENT.  The term of this Agreement shall be from the date this 

Agreement is made and entered into, as first written above, until the completion of all 
services by the Consultant and acceptance of those services and materials by the District 
or until December 31, 2018. 

 
2. DATA FURNISHED BY DISTRICT.  For the purpose of aiding Consultant in the 

performance of its obligations under this Agreement, District has furnished Consultant with 
existing information which was indicated by District as being available and which 
Consultant had requested. Consultant shall apply reasonable caution in its use and 
interpretation of the data and shall promptly advise District of any suspected inaccuracies 
or omissions in the data that has been furnished, or may be furnished during the project.  
Consultant shall have no liability for defects in the Services attributable to Consultant’s 
reliance upon or use of As Built drawings, furnished by District or third parties retained by 
District. 

 
3. SCOPE OF SERVICES.   

 



Agreement for Engineering Services 
 
 

 
 2 

 
See Exhibit A-“Scope of Work” 

 
4. FEE FOR SERVICES.  The District shall pay to the Consultant on a completed task basis 

for services requested by the District.  The completed task unit cost shall be as shown on 
[Exhibit A].  The task unit cost for services shall be the fully loaded cost and shall include 
all overhead costs, material costs and miscellaneous costs.  
 
The total fee for services shall not exceed $220,968 without the prior written consent of 
the District.   

   
5. DELIVERABLES.  The completion and delivery of one copy and one electronic file (Adobe 

format or otherwise mutually agreed format) of the following shall be defined as the work 
required achieving the designated deliverables: 

  
 See Exhibit A 
   
6. PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION.  Compensation shall be billed monthly in increments 

based on the percentage of each task completed. 
 
7. CHARGES FOR REVIEW OF BILLS.  The Consultant shall not charge District for 

questions of billings under this Agreement.  The Consultant shall answer all questions 
about billings to the satisfaction of District. 

 
8. NO INTEREST, NO ATTORNEYS’ FEES.  No interest shall be charged on bills and each 

party will bear their own attorneys’ fees and costs for any lawsuit or arbitration or other 
dispute resolution methodology arising out of this project. 

 
9. CHANGES.  Consultant shall provide engineering services as required by this Agreement 

without modification or changes to the hourly rate or any other extra compensation, 
excepting only changes authorized by a written change order signed by District and 
Consultant.  Any change in the total compensation allowed for performance under this 
Agreement shall be accomplished only by such a change order.  Accordingly, no course of 
conduct or dealings between the parties, nor express or implied acceptance of alterations 
or additions to the work, and no claim that District has been unjustly enriched by any 
alteration or addition to work, whether or not there is, in fact, any unjust enrichment to the 
work, shall be the basis of any claim to any increase in the total compensation provided for 
in this Agreement.  Should District request a change in the services covered by this 
Agreement, Consultant shall not expend any time or money for the change until a written 
change order is prepared and signed by District and Consultant. Should Consultant 
expend time or funds without an executed change order, all costs therefore shall be the 
sole responsibility of Consultant.  Once a change order is prepared and signed by both 
parties, it shall constitute a final settlement of all matters relating to the change which is 
the subject of the change order, including, but limited to, all direct and indirect costs 



Agreement for Engineering Services 
 
 

 
 3 

associated with such change and any and all adjustments to the fee due the Consultant 
and the work schedule. 

 
10. PROJECT SCHEDULE  The Consultant understands the importance of accurate and 

timely completion of the required tasks. The project schedule shall be as shown in Exhibit 
A..  

 
11. RESPONSIBILITY OF CONSULTANT.   
 

a) CONSULTANT shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, 
timely completion, and the coordination of all testing, analysis, inspection, reports, designs and other 
services furnished by CONSULTANT under this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall, without additional 
compensation, promptly correct any CONSULTANT errors, omissions, or other deficiencies in its 
analysis, inspection, testing, reports, designs, and other services; to the extent such corrections are 
not attributable to change in project description or data modification by District. 
 b) Consultant shall perform such professional services as may be necessary to 
accomplish the work required to be performed under this Agreement, in accordance with this 
Agreement and the cost proposal. Approval by District of analyses, inspection, testing, reports, 
designs and incidental engineering work or materials furnished hereunder shall not in any way relieve 
CONSULTANT of responsibility for the technical adequacy of its work.  Neither District’s approval or 
acceptance of, nor payment for, any of CONSULTANT's services shall be construed to operate as a 
waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of 
this Agreement. 

c) CONSULTANT shall be and remain liable in accordance with applicable California law 
for damages to District caused by CONSULTANT's negligent performance of any of the services 
furnished under this Agreement.   

 
12. PERSONNEL. District requires the following project team members to work directly with 

District until completion of the project.  CONSULTANT shall inform District immediately if any 
of the following personnel or staff listed in the proposal becomes unavailable for any reason 
prior to completion of their tasks: 



Agreement for Engineering Services 
 
 

 
 4 

Name       Task 
[NAME OF PRINCIPAL]   Principal-in-Charge 
[NAME OF PROJECT MANAGER] Project Manager 
 
In the event a change in any of the above-named personnel or staff listed in the proposal 
becomes necessary, CONSULTANT shall promptly submit to the District the name and 
qualifications of the proposed replacement person(s). CONSULTANT and District will then 
agree upon the selection of the replacement person(s) whose qualifications and expertise 
shall be at least equal to the person replaced. The penalty for replacement of personnel 
without permission of Casitas will be ten percent (10%) of the gross of the contract.  
CONSULTANT agrees not to request an increase in the per-hour fee or any other 
compensation for such a change in personnel. 

 
12. INSURANCE.  
  

a) During the course of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall pay for and maintain 
in full force and effect, and cause each of its subconsultants to maintain in full force and 
effect, all insurance required by any governmental agency having jurisdiction to require 
particular insurance of CONSULTANT or its subcontractors in connection with or related to 
the assessment services to be performed under this Agreement. 

b) During the course of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall pay for and maintain 
in full force and effect, and cause each of its subconsultants to maintain in full force and 
effect, workers' compensation insurance, including occupational disease provisions, as 
required by the laws of the State of California and employer's general liability insurance for all 
labor employed by them, directly or indirectly, in the performance of this Agreement. 

c) During the course of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall pay for and maintain 
in full force and effect, public liability and property damage insurance naming District, its 
officers, directors, and employees as additional insured, insuring against liability and claims 
for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, death or injury to or destruction of 
tangible property arising out of or resulting from any work performed under this Agreement, 
whether such work is performed by CONSULTANT or a subconsultant or by anyone directly 
or indirectly employed by them, or by anyone else for whose acts any of them may be liable.  
Such insurance shall include all major divisions of coverage and be on a comprehensive 
basis, including:  (a) premises/operations; (b) independent contractor’s protection; (c) 
products included in operations; (d) contractual (including Contractor’s indemnity obligations 
for tort liability under this Agreement); (e) owned, non-owned and hired motor vehicles and 
other mobile equipment; and (f) broad form property damage endorsement, including 
completed operations.  The limits of liability for such insurance shall be not less than 
$1,000,000 per occurrence for public liability and $1,000,000 per occurrence for property 
damage.  Such insurance shall be issued by a responsible carrier or carriers acceptable to 
District.  All such insurance shall be written on an occurrence basis and shall be primary and 
noncontributory. CONTRACTOR shall cause each of its subcontractors to procure, pay for 
and maintain in full force and effect during the course of this Agreement, public liability and 
property damage insurance reasonably satisfactory to District and naming District, its officers, 
directors and employees as additional insured with respect to claims arising out of operations 



Agreement for Engineering Services 
 
 

 
 5 

performed on behalf of CONSULTANT for the consulting services covered by this Agreement.  
 
The District, its directors, officers, employees, agents and volunteers are to be covered 

as insureds as respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the 
Contractors, products and completed operations of the Contractor; premises owned, occupied 
or used by the Contractor; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the 
Contractor. The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection 
afforded to the District, its directors, officers, employees, agents and volunteers. 

 
(d) Worker's Compensation Insurance - by his signature hereunder, Consultant 

certifies that he is aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which 
require every employer to be insured against liability for worker's compensation or to 
undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and he will 
comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this 
contract.  

 
The Contractor shall maintain, and shall cause all subcontractors he may employ to 

maintain adequate workers compensation insurance under the laws of the State of 
California for all labor employed by them, directly or indirectly, in the execution of the work. 
The Contractor and all subcontractors shall file with the District certification of such 
workers compensation insurance prior to beginning construction. 

 
e) Prior to the commencement of performance of any work under this Agreement, 

CONSULTANT and its subconsultants shall furnish District with certificates of insurance in 
form and substance satisfactory to District evidencing all of the insurance coverage required 
by paragraphs a. through c. above.  All policies and certificates of insurance required under 
paragraphs a. through c. above shall expressly provide for no less than 30 days prior written 
notice to District in the event of a cancellation, non-renewal or expiration of the coverage. 

 
 

14. INDEMNIFICATION. CONSULTANT shall defend, indemnify and hold District and its officers, 
directors, and employees, harmless from all loss, liability and expense from all third party tort 
claims and demands or liability if and to the extent caused by negligence or willful misconduct 
of CONSULTANT, its subconsultants and employees whether such claims, demands or 
liability are caused by CONSULTANT, CONSULTANT's agents or employees, or 
subconsultants employed by CONSULTANT, their agents or employees, or products installed 
on the project by CONSULTANT or its subconsultant, excepting such loss, liability or expense 
as may be caused by District’s negligence or willful misconduct.  Such indemnification shall 
extend to claims, demands or liability for injury, death or damage to property arising after 
completion of the project as well as during the work's progress.  The foregoing indemnification 
shall apply, without limitation, to bodily injury and property damage claims as well as to stop 
notices and monetary claims for labor, materials or equipment furnished in the performance of 
the assessment services covered by this Agreement.  In the event such liability, claims, 
actions, causes of action or demands are caused by the joint or concurrent negligence of 
more than one party, such liability shall be borne by each party in proportion to its own fault. 



Agreement for Engineering Services 
 
 

 
 6 

The duty to defend shall not apply to professional liability claims. 
 
15. ASSIGNMENT.  Neither party may assign this Agreement or any payments due under this 

Agreement, either voluntarily or involuntarily, without the prior written consent of the other 
party. If and to the extent any assignment is authorized, it shall not be effective until the 
assignee signs a written agreement to be bound by all of the provisions of this Agreement, 
nor shall it relieve the assignor of its obligations under this Agreement unless the written 
consent to the assignment expressly states that the assignor shall be relieved. 

 
16. TERMINATION.  In addition to the rights granted to District under the General Conditions, 

District may, by written notice to CONSULTANT, suspend or discontinue the performance 
of all work pursuant to this Agreement, and may terminate this Agreement, with or without 
cause after 15 calendar day’s written notice from the date of mailing.  In the event of a 
termination without cause, CONSULTANT will be entitled to a reasonable portion of the 
lump sum fee for its services rendered prior to the effective date of the notice, but 
CONSULTANT shall have no claim against District for loss of anticipated profits or other 
payment on account of services not yet performed and which are not thereafter performed 
by CONSULTANT.  In the event of a termination without cause, CONSULTANT will submit 
a final invoice to District for all services rendered prior to termination within a reasonable 
time, not to exceed 45 days of the effective date of such notice.  Any bills received after 
the expiration of the 45-day period need not be paid by District. 

 
17. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  All plans, studies, sketches, reports, test data, and 

drawings, prepared by or for either party pursuant to this Agreement including copyright 
ownership shall be the property of DISTRICT when CONSULTANT has been 
compensated for all undisputed billings in accordance with this Agreement , whether the 
work for which they are prepared be executed or not.  Upon completion of all work under 
this Agreement, or in the event this Agreement is terminated prior to completion of all such 
work, all documents, plans, specifications, drawings pertaining to the facility, and all other 
material provided to assist CONSULTANT in performing under this Agreement shall be 
delivered forthwith to DISTRICT.  However, nothing shall prevent CONSULTANT from 
using intellectual property developed under this contract in other works.  All documents, 
including, but not limited to, drawings, specifications, and computer software prepared by 
CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement are instruments for service specific to this 
project.  They are not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by DISTRICT or 
others on extensions of the project or on any other project.  Any reuse without the prior 
written verification or adaptation by DISTRICT for the specific purpose intended shall be at 
District’s sole risk. 

 
18. GOVERNING LAW; PLACE OF SUIT.  This Agreement is to be governed by and 

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.  Any lawsuit arising out of 
this Agreement shall be filed and prosecuted exclusively in Ventura County, California 
Superior Court. 

 



Agreement for Engineering Services 
 
 

 
 7 

19. SUBCONTRACTS.  DISTRICT has entered into this Agreement in order to receive the 
services of CONSULTANT.  The provisions of the Agreement shall equally apply to any 
subcontractor of CONSULTANT.  CONSULTANT shall include in all subcontracts a clause 
making the terms of this Agreement binding upon the subcontract. 

 
20. MONTHLY BILLINGS. Contractor shall not bill District more often than monthly during the 

term of this Agreement 
  
21. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement constitutes the whole Agreement between the 

parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof, and neither party nor any of its 
agents or employees has made any representation except as specifically provided herein. 
 Neither of the parties in executing or performing this Agreement is relying upon any 
statement or information to whomsoever made or given directly or indirectly, verbally or in 
writing by any individual or corporation except as specifically provided herein.  The 
Agreement may not be modified or altered except in writing signed by both parties. 

 
22. OPINIONS OF COST AND SCHEDULE.  CONSULTANT’s opinions on cost and schedule 

shall be made on the basis of available information and CONSULTANT’s expertise and 
qualifications as a professional.  CONSULTANT does not warrant or guarantee that its 
opinions on cost or schedule of current and future levels and events will not vary from 
CONSULTANT’s estimates or forecasts or from actual outcomes. 

 
23. NOTICES.  All communication, notices, and demands of any kind which either party 

hereto may be required or may desire to give to or serve upon the other party may be 
given or served by manual delivery to such party or an office thereof or by enclosing it in a 
sealed envelope and depositing it in the United State mail, postage prepaid, registered, 
and addressed to the respective parties as follows: 

 
To District:  
Steven E. WickstrumGeneral Manager 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
1055 Ventura Avenue 
Oak View, CA 93022 
(805) 649-2251 

To Consultant: 
Kirsten Plonka, P.E. 
Senior Engineer 
Water Systems Consulting 
805 Aerovista Place, Suite 201 
San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 
(619) 450-4588 x304 

 
 
The effective date of all hand-delivered notices shall be the date of delivery.  The effective date 
of all mailed notices shall be the second day following the deposit in the mail. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this instrument to be executed 
the day and year first above written. 
 
ATTEST:     CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT   
 



Agreement for Engineering Services 
 
 

 
 8 

                                                    By:     ___________________________                          
Secretary,       
Casitas Municipal Water District   Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
                                                          
John M. Matthews, Attorney 
Arnold LaRochelle Mathews VanConas & Zirbel LLP  
 

[NAME OF CONSULTANT] 
 
 
 
 

By:   _________________________________ 
       

          



Scope of Work for Ojai System      July 19, 2017 

1- PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
1.1 Kick-Off Meeting 
 Plan, organize and conduct one kickoff meeting.  The purpose of the Kickoff Meeting will be to: 

(1) Establish roles and responsibilities 

(2) Review scope, schedule and deliverables 

(3) Review available data and establish data needs 

(4) Review master plan update requirements and methodology 

(5) Discuss agency coordination. 

Deliverable:  A draft agenda, a data request log, a work plan for the project, a project contact 
list, and a project schedule with milestones provided to the District at least two days before the 
meeting.  A list of action items and assignments will be provided within one week following the 
meeting. 

1.2 Project Meetings 
 Conduct six (6) periodic hour and a half (1.5) hour project meetings to: provide updates on 

project progress; present interim results; review the data request log; discuss project 
methodologies; and review draft and final deliverables.  It is anticipated that the following 
project meetings will be required to complete the Water Master Plan.   Whenever possible, 
meetings will be combined to increase project efficiency. 

(1) Data Review and Demand Allocation Meeting 

(2) Draft Evaluation Criteria and Demand Allocation TM & Model Development and 
Calibration TM Review Meeting 

(3) Condition Assessment and Operational Analysis Review Meeting 

(4) Preliminary Capacity Analysis Results Meeting 

(5) Draft Project Description Sheets Review Meeting 

(6) Draft Water Master Plan and CIP Review Meeting 

Deliverable:  An agenda provided to the District at least two days before the meeting.  A list of 
action items and assignments will be provided within one week following the meeting. 

1.3 Status Update Conference Calls 
 Conduct bi-weekly conference calls with the District’s project manager. 

1.4 Project Schedule 
 Update the project schedule as needed.  Maintain a log of the action items and key project 

decisions made throughout the duration of the project.   

lcao
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT A

lcao
Typewritten Text



Deliverable:  A rolling four (4) week schedule and an action item/key decision log. 

1.5 QA/QC 
 Perform comprehensive quality control of all work items being prepared for delivery to the 

District. 

2- DATA COLLECTION AND REVIEW OF WATER SYSTEM OPERATIONAL DATA 
2.1 Data Request 
 Prepare a data request log to track data sets requested from the District.  The data request will 

include the existing Water Master Plan and District maps and records for the water system.  It 
will also include GIS data sets (if available), operational data, and operational strategies used by 
District staff in controlling the system. 

 Maintain the data request log as items are provided by the District or new items are identified. 

Deliverable:  An updated data request log. 

2.2 Data Review 
 Review existing data to evaluate its use for development of a new hydraulic model.  Identify any 

missing data that needs to be generated to support the hydraulic model development.  Work 
with District staff to develop a plan for population of any missing data. 

Deliverable:  A summary of existing data sets and any identified data gaps. 

2.3 System Evaluation Criteria 
 Review previously used criteria for design and system evaluation.  Develop a recommended set 

of criteria for use in this project.  Criteria are expected to include minimum and maximum 
pressures, maximum velocities, and required fire flows.  Develop demand peaking factors 
(maximum day, peak hour, and minimum day) using data provided by the District. 

2.4 Spatial Demand Allocation 
 Compile historical water use data and link the data to a geographic location for each account, 

either through meter locations, parcel numbers, or street addresses.  Calculate average 
demands for each demand point in preparation for allocating demands to the hydraulic model.  
Overlay the spatially-allocated demand with land use information in GIS.  Use the observed 
demands to calculate per-acre land use duty factors to be used when estimating future 
demands. 

2.5 Future Demand Projection 
 Compile growth projection documents including the Ojai system’s Urban Water Management 

Plan (if available) and General Plan Land Use Element., Prepare estimates of future demands at 
horizons of 3 years and 10 years. 



2.6 Evaluation Criteria and Demand Allocation TM 
 Develop a draft technical memorandum to document the evaluation criteria, the spatial demand 

allocation, and the future demand projection.  Incorporate Casitas review comments into a final 
technical memorandum. 

Deliverable:  Draft and final technical memorandum in electronic PDF format. 

2.7 Database Development (Optional) 
 Organize existing files and documents received from Golden State into a searchable database. 

Scope to be further defined once document review has occurred by District staff and WSC. 

3- HYDRAULIC MODEL DEVELOPMENT 
3.1 Model Creation 
 Develop a hydraulic model of the Ojai  distribution system.  Import the Ojai’s GIS infrastructure 

database into the hydraulic modeling software.  Review network connectivity and notify District 
of any discrepancies or unexplained connections.  Add control valves, zone boundary valves, 
storage tanks, wells, and pumps to the model and populate attributes using data provided by 
the District. 

3.2 Model Calibration 
 Calibrate the hydraulic model to observed conditions during steady-state conditions.  Use 

results of historic fire flow tests provided by the District to adjust pipe roughness factors or 
minor losses to achieve acceptable agreement between model results and observed test results.  

3.3 Model Development and Calibration TM 
 Document the process of model development and calibration in a draft technical memorandum.  

Incorporate District review comments into a final technical memorandum. 

Deliverables:  Draft and final technical memorandum in electronic PDF format.  

Hydraulic model in electronic format.  Casitas will obtain the software necessary to operate the 
model separately. 

4- SYSTEM CAPACITY ANALYSIS 
4.1 Existing System Deficiencies 
 Perform steady-state analyses of the existing distribution system to identify hydraulic 

deficiencies.  Runs are expected to include average day demand, maximum day demand, peak 
hour demand, and maximum day demand plus fire flow.  Areas where the existing system does 
not meet the evaluation criteria will be documented as deficiencies. 



4.2 Future System Deficiencies 
 Using previous planning documents, information provided by the District, and engineering 

judgment, add future system expansions to the future conditions model.  Include major 
transmission, storage, production, and pumping facilities to serve currently undeveloped areas.  
Assign future demands to future areas using land use-based demand factors or more specific 
information if available.  Perform steady-state analyses of the future distribution system.  
Planning horizons are expected to include 3-year, 10-year. System expansions or connection will 
be sized to meet the evaluation criteria.  Areas where the existing system does not meet the 
evaluation criteria with future demands will be documented as deficiencies. 

Deliverable:  Working maps showing existing and future system deficiencies. 

5- OPERATIONAL ANALYSIS 
5.1 Extended Period Simulation 
 Develop an extended period simulation (EPS) model of the existing distribution system.  Develop 

diurnal patterns to show variation of demand over a typical 24-hour period.  Load model with 
diurnal patterns.  Add control strategies to wells and pump stations based on information from 
District staff.  Run the model and compare observed tank levels to model results. 

5.2 Water Age Analysis 
 Modeling of individual water quality constituents (e.g., disinfectant residual) is not included in 

this scope.  However, water age can be used as an approximate indicator of potential areas for 
water quality concern.  Use the EPS model to simulate water age throughout the distribution 
system during summer and winter conditions.  Hold a meeting with District staff to review water 
age results and compare to staff operational knowledge of problem areas. 

5.3 System Reliability Analysis 
 Use the EPS model of the existing system to evaluate potential operational changes or system 

modifications.  Work with District staff to identify areas of concern (e.g., no storage, change in 
water supply sources during different times of the year, energy used for pumping, areas of the 
system without redundancy in supply, taste and odor complaints, anticipated new water quality 
regulations, or formation of disinfection by products (DBPs)).  This scope includes an allowance 
of hours for modeling the highest-priority issues.  Additional modeling work to further evaluate 
areas in more detail may be performed under a separate agreement. 

6- CONDITION BASED ASSESSMET 
6.1 Condition-Based Data Review 
 Review available information about system age and condition of distribution system assets.  

6.2 WSC Field Visits 
 Spend two days with District Staff visiting facilities that are visible and accessible and use data to 

prepare required assessment. 



6.3 Leak Detection Services  
 Leak detection services to be provided by Utility Services Associates (proposal attached). 

6.4 Tank Inspection 
 Tank dive inspection services to be provided by Advantage Technical Services (proposal 

attached). 

6.5 Condition-Based Improvement Planning 
 Develop a preliminary replacement schedule based on industry practices.  Develop a preliminary 

estimate of required funding for rehabilitation and replacement of aging infrastructure. 

6.6 Well Assessment 
 Review existing production reports, well condition reports and repair history.  Prepare a 

condition report with recommendations for further investigation, rehabilitation or replacement 
as appropriate based on the available information (additional scope attached). 

7- CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
7.1 Preliminary Project List 
 Develop a preliminary list of projects to address deficiencies identified during system analysis.  

Develop estimated construction costs for improvement projects.  Prioritize improvements based 
on what planning horizon they are needed for (existing, 3-year, 10-year).   

7.2 Project Description Sheets 
 Review preliminary project list with District staff and update project list based on District staff 

input.  Develop a fact sheet for each recommended improvement project that includes a brief 
project description, estimated cost, and priority. 

Deliverables:  Draft and revised project list.  Project description sheets for recommended 
projects. 

8- REPORT PREPARATION, PRESENTATIONS, AND TRAINING 
8.1 Water Master Plan Preparation 
 Combine documents from previous tasks into a draft Water Master Plan for District review.  

Prepare exhibits showing proposed improvements to accompany Water Master Plan.  Prepare 
an executive summary describing the findings and the recommended improvements.  Update 
the Water Master Plan based on District staff input and prepare a final Water Master Plan. 

8.2 Presentation 
 Prepare presentation about the Water Master Plan and deliver them at a public Board of 

Director’s meeting.  Incorporate feedback received into the final Water Master Plan. 

8.3 Hydraulic Model Training 
 Provide electronic files for final hydraulic model to District staff.  Provide training in use of 

model for development analysis, fire flow analysis, or other needs identified by the District.  
WSC will provide two days of training at the District’s offices. 



Deliverables:  Six paper copies and an electronic PDF copy of the draft Water Master Plan.  
Eight spiral-bound copies and an electronic PDF copy of the final Water Master Plan.  
Electronic files for the final hydraulic model. 

ASSUMPTIONS 
 The District can provide an accurate GIS database for existing infrastructure. 
 The District will provide a water consumption dataset that can be linked to the geographic 

locations. 
 The District possesses sufficient flow and pressure data from previous hydrants tests to calibrate 

the model.  Preparing and implementing a hydrant flow testing plan would need to be 
performed under a separate agreement and would impact the provided schedule. 

 If these data are not available, WSC will work with the District to evaluate alternatives to 
develop these data sources using District staff or additional WSC resources. 



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 Notice to Proceed 0 days Tue 8/1/17 Tue 8/1/17

2 Task 1:  Project Management and Meetings 270 daysTue 8/1/17 Mon 8/13/18

3 Project Administration 270 daysTue 8/1/17 Mon 8/13/18

4 Kickoff Meeting 0 days Tue 8/1/17 Tue 8/1/17

5 Project Meetings 270 daysTue 8/1/17 Mon 8/13/18

6 Project Meeting 1 - Data Review and Demand Allocation Meeting1 day Mon 9/11/17 Mon 9/11/17

7 Project Meeting 2 - Draft Evaluation Criteria and 
Demand Allocation TM & Model Development and 
Calibration TM Review Meeting

1 day Mon 
10/23/17

Mon 
10/23/17

8 Project Meeting 3 - Condition Assessment and 
Operational Analysis Review Meeting

1 day Mon 1/15/18 Mon 1/15/18

9 Project Meeting 4 - Preliminary Capacity Analysis 
Review Meeting

1 day Mon 4/9/18 Mon 4/9/18

10 Project Meeting 5 - Draft Project Description Sheets 
Review Meeting

1 day Mon 5/21/18 Mon 5/21/18

11 Project Meeting 6 - Draft Water Master Plan and CIP 
Review Meeting

1 day Mon 7/2/18 Mon 7/2/18

12 Task 2:  Data Collection and Review of Water System 
Operational Data

30 days Tue 8/1/17 Mon 
9/11/17

13 Data Request 5 days Tue 8/1/17 Mon 8/7/17

14 Data Review 5 days Tue 8/8/17 Mon 8/14/17

15 System Evaluation Criteria 5 days Tue 8/15/17 Mon 8/21/17

16 Spatial Demand Allocation 5 days Tue 8/22/17 Mon 8/28/17

17 Future Demand Projection 5 days Tue 8/29/17 Mon 9/4/17

18 Evaluation Criteria and Demand Allocation TM 5 days Tue 9/5/17 Mon 9/11/17

19 Task 3:  Hydraulic Model Development 31 days Mon 9/11/17Mon 10/23/17

20 Model Creation 10 days Tue 9/12/17 Mon 9/25/17

21 Model Calibration 10 days Tue 9/26/17 Mon 10/9/17

22 Model Development and Calibration TM 10 days Tue 10/10/17 Mon 10/23/17

23 Task 4:  System Capacity Analysis 31 days Mon 10/23/17Mon 12/4/17

24 Existing System Deficiencies 15 days Tue 10/24/17 Mon 11/13/17

25 Future System Deficiencies 15 days Tue 11/14/17 Mon 12/4/17

26 Task 5:  Operational Analysis 31 days Mon 12/4/17Mon 1/15/18

27 Extended Period Simulation 10 days Tue 12/5/17 Mon 12/18/17

28 Water Age Analysis 10 days Tue 12/19/17 Mon 1/1/18

29 System Reliability Analysis 10 days Tue 1/2/18 Mon 1/15/18

30 Task 6:  Condition Based Assessment 61 days Mon 1/15/18Mon 4/9/18

31 Condition Based Data Review 10 days Tue 1/16/18 Mon 1/29/18

32 WSC Field Visits 10 days Tue 1/30/18 Mon 2/12/18

33 Leak Detection Services 10 days Tue 2/13/18 Mon 2/26/18

34 Tank Inspection 10 days Tue 2/27/18 Mon 3/12/18

35 Condition-Based Improvement Planning 10 days Tue 3/13/18 Mon 3/26/18

36 Well Assessment 10 days Tue 3/27/18 Mon 4/9/18

37 Task 7:  Capital Improvement Plan 785 daysTue 8/1/17 Mon 8/3/20

38 Preliminary Project List 1 day Thu 2/1/18 Thu 2/1/18

39 Project Description Sheets 15 days Fri 2/2/18 Thu 2/22/18

40 Task 8:  Report Preparation, Presentations, and Training 61 days Mon 5/21/18Mon 8/13/18

41 Water Master Plan Preparation 30 days Mon 5/21/18 Fri 6/29/18

42 Presentation 10 days Mon 7/2/18 Fri 7/13/18

43 Hydraulic Model Training 20 days Mon 7/16/18 Fri 8/10/18

8/1

8/1

J S N J M M J
Half 2, 2017 Half 1, 2018

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

External Tasks

External Milestone

Inactive Task

Inactive Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual Task

Duration-only

Manual Summary Rollup

Manual Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

Deadline

Progress

Manual Progress

Page 1

Project: 2017 Ojai System
Date: Tue 7/18/17



Page 1 of 1

Casitas Municipal Water District - Ojai System
Water Master Plan and Condition Assessment
Fee Table
7/19/2017

Senior 
Engineer 

IV

Senior 
Engineer 

III

Associate 
Engineer II

Associate 
Planner

Assistant 
Engineer

Clerical/ 
Admin

Total Labor 
Hours

Total Labor Expenses Fee
Subconsultant 

Fee
Fee

Subconsultant 
Fee

Fee
Subconsultant 

Fee
Fee Total Fee

$240 $225 $175 $165 $126 $90 4% 1.15            1.15                1.15         
1 Project Management 20 44 0 0 30 12 106 19,560$             $900 $20,460 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $20,460

1.1 Kick-off Meeting 4 4 4 12 2,364$                $100 $2,464 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $2,464
1.2 Project Meetings 24 12 36 6,912$                $300 $7,212 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $7,212
1.3 Status Update Conference Calls 12 6 12 30 4,536$                $200 $4,736 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $4,736
1.4 Project Schedule 4 8 12 1,908$                $100 $2,008 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $2,008
1.5 QA/QC 16 16 3,840$                $200 $4,040 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $4,040
2 Data Collection and Review of Water System Operational Data 0 22 8 44 68 0 142 22,178$             $800 $22,978 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $22,978

2.1 Data Request 2 4 6 954$                   $0 $954 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $954
2.2 Data Review 4 4 4 8 20 3,268$                $100 $3,368 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $3,368
2.3 System Evaluation Criteria 4 8 12 1,908$                $100 $2,008 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $2,008
2.4 Spatial Demand Allocation 4 4 24 16 48 7,576$                $300 $7,876 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $7,876
2.5 Future Demand Projection 4 16 16 36 5,556$                $200 $5,756 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $5,756
2.6 Evaluation Criteria and Demand Allocation TM 4 16 20 2,916$                $100 $3,016 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $3,016
2.7 Database Development 0 -$                    $0 $0 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $0
3 Hydraulic Model Development 0 28 0 0 120 0 148 21,420$             $800 $22,220 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $22,220

3.1 Model Creation 16 80 96 13,680$             $500 $14,180 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $14,180
3.2 Model Calibration 8 24 32 4,824$                $200 $5,024 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $5,024
3.3 Model Development and Calibration TM 4 16 20 2,916$                $100 $3,016 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $3,016
4 System Capacity Analysis 0 32 0 0 64 0 96 15,264$             $600 $15,864 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $15,864

4.1 Existing System Deficiencies 16 40 56 8,640$                $300 $8,940 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $8,940
4.2 Future System Deficiencies 16 24 40 6,624$                $300 $6,924 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $6,924
5 Operational Analysis 0 24 8 0 72 0 104 15,872$             $600 $16,472 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $16,472

5.1 Extended Period Simulation 8 32 40 5,832$                $200 $6,032 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $6,032
5.2 Water Age Analysis 8 24 32 4,824$                $200 $5,024 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $5,024
5.3 System Reliability Analysis 8 8 16 32 5,216$                $200 $5,416 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $5,416
6 Condition Based Assessment 2 28 52 8 8 0 98 18,208$             $600 $18,808 12,091$             $13,905 21,865$             $25,145 27,670$             $31,821 $89,678

6.1 Condition-Based Data Review 4 4 8 16 2,920$                $100 $3,020 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $3,020
6.2 WSC Field Visits 8 8 8 24 4,208$                $200 $4,408 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $4,408
6.3 Leak Detection Services 4 4 900$                   $0 $900 12,091$             $13,905 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $14,805
6.4 Tank Inspection 4 4 900$                   $0 $900 -$                   $0 21,865$             $25,145 -$                    $0 $26,045
6.5 Condition Based Improvement Planning 4 16 20 3,700$                $100 $3,800 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $3,800
6.6 Well Assessment 2 4 24 30 5,580$                $200 $5,780 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 27,670$             $31,821 $37,601
7 Capital Improvement Plan 0 16 16 0 48 0 80 12,448$             $400 $12,848 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $12,848

7.1 Preliminary Project List 8 8 24 40 6,224$                $200 $6,424 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $6,424
7.2 Project Description Sheets 8 8 24 40 6,224$                $200 $6,424 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $6,424
8 Report Preparation, Presentations, and Training 2 40 16 8 48 0 114 19,648$             $800 $20,448 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $20,448

8.1 Water Master Plan Preparation 2 12 16 8 24 62 10,324$             $400 $10,724 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $10,724
8.2 Presentation 8 8 16 2,808$                $100 $2,908 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $2,908
8.3 Hydraulic Model Training 20 16 36 6,516$                $300 $6,816 -$                   $0 -$                   $0 -$                    $0 $6,816

24             234         100          60             458           12          888 144,598$           $5,500 $150,098 12,091$             $13,905 21,865$             $25,145 27,670$             $31,821 $220,968

ALL FIRMS

Column Totals

Utility Services Associates Advantage Technical ServicesWSC

Task DescriptionTask No.

Billing rates, $/hr

Pueblo Water Resources



 

PO Box 4255 I San Luis Obispo, CA 93403  www.wsc-inc.com 

   

2017 Classifications and Rates 

 

Labor Classification Hourly Rate 

Principal $275 

Senior Engineer V $255 

Senior Engineer IV $240 

Senior Engineer III $225 

Senior Engineer II $210 

Senior Engineer I $200 

Associate Planner/Engineer III $185 

Associate Planner/Engineer II $175 

Associate Planner/Engineer I $165 

Staff Planner/Engineer III $159 

Staff Planner/Engineer II $150 

Staff Planner/Engineer I $137 

Assistant Engineer $126 

Engineering Intern $110 

Construction Inspector (Prevailing Wage – Group 1) $154 

Construction Inspector (Prevailing Wage – Group 2) $148 

Construction Inspector (Prevailing Wage – Group 3) $133 

Construction Inspector (Prevailing Wage – Group 4) $120 

Construction Inspector (Non-Prevailing Wage) $120 

Senior Technician/ CAD Designer $125 

Technician/ CAD Operator $110 

Outreach Specialist / Facilitator $185 

Project Coordinator / Controller $110 

Administration / Clerical $90 

10% mark-up on direct expenses; 15% mark-up for sub-contracted services 

Standard mileage rate $0.535 per mile (or current Federal Mileage Reimbursement Rate) 

Airplane mileage rate $1.15 per mile (or current Federal Airplane Mileage Reimbursement Rate) 

Rates are subject to revision as of January 1, 2018 

 

 





























 
 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
Well Assessment Project 
July 2017 
 

casitas well assessment project scope july 2017 DRAFT 

-1- 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
WELLFIELD ASSESSMENT PROJECT 

SCOPE OF WORK 

Pueblo’s scope of work will include assessment of the well facilities recently acquired by 
Casitas from the Golden State Water Company.  The purpose of the wellfield assessment will 
be to: determine the physical condition of each well; establish current well performance and 
water quality characteristics; and quantify the existing production capacity of the wells and the 
combined well system.  Through the assessment, the needs for further investigation will be 
identified, and recommendations for well repair, well rehabilitation, or well replacement will be 
provided. 

The assessment will be based on available existing information, and will include 
compilation and review of well construction records; evaluation of well production and 
performance records; review of available water quality data; and compilation and review of well 
and pump maintenance records, well rehabilitation efforts, and video surveys.  A physical 
inspection of above ground well facilities will also be performed, preferably when the wells are 
operating so that well performance parameters may be monitored and well appurtenances can 
be inspected while pumping is occurring.  It is assumed that all available information listed 
above regarding the wells will be made available to Pueblo for use on the project. 

The results of the wellfield assessment will be documented in a summary report.  The 
report will consist of two volumes.  The first volume will consist of a compilation of well logs, well 
construction records, well maintenance records, and baseline and historical well performance 
and water quality characteristics.  The intent of this ‘Well Book’ is to consolidate available 
information about each of the wells for future use as a reference by Casitas.  The second 
volume will consist of a technical memorandum and will include assessment of the data 
collected and reviewed, conclusions regarding the status of well facilities, and recommendations 
for further investigation and/or well repairs, modifications, or replacement. Pueblo’s Project 
Manager for the Wellfield Assessment will be Michael Burke, P.G., C.Hg. with technical support 
provided by Martin Feeney, P.G., C.Hg., C.E.G. 





 

 
 

1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

 

 

DATE:  June 12, 2017 

 

TO:  Recreation Committee  

 

FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 

   

SUBJECT: Recreation Area Monthly Report for May 2017  
 

Visitation Numbers 

 

The following is a comparison of visitations* for May 2017:   

 

 May 2017 May 2016 April 2017 

Visitor Days 59,716 59,660 90,884 

Camps 4,555 4,403 6,874 

Cars 14,929 14,915 22,721 

Boats 258 198 415 

Kayaks & Canoes 5 4 6 

 

Fiscal Year to Date Visitation 

2015/2016 510,322 

2016/2017 634,338 

% Change 24.302 

 
*The formulas for calculating the above attendance figures derived from the daily cash reports are as follows:   

Visitor Days = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + 
campsites occupied +extra vehicles X 4 

Camps = Campsites occupied + extra vehicles 

Cars = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + campsites 
occupied + extra vehicles 

Boats = Daily boats + overnight boats + annual decals + replacement decals 

Kayaks & Canoes = Daily kayaks and canoes + overnight kayaks and canoes + annual kayaks and canoes 
 

Incidents 

There were 69 calls for service from the public and 187 staff observations of violations where the park 

staff made customer contact. Six incidents required response from Ventura County Sheriff Office, one 

from Ventura County Fire for a medical. Incidents included a missing boaters who were several hours 

overdue from night fishing subsequently found safe, one DUI and one BUI and two domestics. Also 

included in the month of May 2017 were thirty leash law violations, nineteen unattended fires, 

nineteen water contacts and a fishing violation. 

 

Boating and Operations  

There were ten cables sold for new inspections, four vessels were re-inspected and a total of 687 

vessels were retagged in May.  Five vessels failed the first inspection in May 2017. Santa Ana Launch 

Ramp continued operation after the water level rose and Old Coyote could no longer be reached by 

road. Two floating restrooms were delivered through a California State grant from the Department of 

Parks and Recreation, Division of Boating and Waterways replacing the two 2005 units.  



 

 
 

2 

 
 

New SS Relief Units #257 and #258 

 

Lake Casitas was stocked with trout from the Department of Fish and Wildlife on two separate 

deliveries in May 2017, the Casitas Water Adventure started another wonderful season with staff night 

on May 19 and the Astronomy Night program attracted about 30 participants on May 27. 

 

Revenue Reporting 

The 2016/2017 unaudited monthly figures below available to date illustrate all Lake Casitas Recreation 

Area’s revenue collected in the respective months (operations, concessions, Water Adventure, etc.) per 

the District’s Financial Summary generated by the Finance Manager.    

 

$0.00

$100,000.00

$200,000.00

$300,000.00

$400,000.00

$500,000.00

$600,000.00

$700,000.00

$800,000.00

Ju
ly

Se
pt

Nov
Ja

n
M

ar

FY 16/17

FY 15/16

 
 

LCRA TOTAL REVENUE 



 

 
 

1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

 

DATE:  July 12, 2017  

 

TO:  Recreation Committee  

 

FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 

   

SUBJECT: Recreation Area Monthly Report for June 2017  
 

Visitation Numbers 

 

The following is a comparison of visitations* for June 2017:   

 

 June 2017 June 2016 May 2017 

Visitor Days 79,648 77,736 59,716 

Camps 8,961 7,225 4,555 

Cars 19,912 19,434 14,929 

Boats 234 235 258 

Kayaks & Canoes 3 17 5 

 

Fiscal Year to Date Visitation 

2015/2016 588,058 

2016/2017 713,986 

% Change 21.414 

 
*The formulas for calculating the above attendance figures derived from the daily cash reports are as follows:   

Visitor Days = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + 
campsites occupied +extra vehicles X 4 

Camps = Campsites occupied + extra vehicles 

Cars = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + campsites 
occupied + extra vehicles 

Boats = Daily boats + overnight boats + annual decals + replacement decals 

Kayaks & Canoes = Daily kayaks and canoes + overnight kayaks and canoes + annual kayaks and canoes 
 

Boating and Operations  

There were six cables sold for new inspections, seven vessels were re-inspected in addition to rowing 

shells, and a total of 571 vessels were retagged in June.  Nine vessels failed the first inspection in June 

2017. Santa Ana Launch Ramp continues to be in operation after the water level rose and Old Coyote 

could no longer be reached by road. Lake Casitas was again stocked with one delivery of trout from 

the Department of Fish and Wildlife in June 2017. The Casitas Water Adventure continued the season 

by opening weekends and then seven days a week for the last week of June, also three separate 

Astronomy Night programs attracted 25, 25 and 45 participants respectively, and the movie Space Jam 

was screened with an estimated participant number of 90.    

 

Incidents 

There were 72 calls for service from the public and 334 staff observations of violations where the park 

staff made customer contact. No incidents required response from Ventura County Sheriff Office, two 

medical incidents required response from Ventura County Fire Department. Other incidents included 

thirty-one unattended fires, eight fishing voliations, eleven boating violations, forty-seven leash law 



 

 
 

2 

violations, sixty-six traffic violations, forty-one body contacts in Lake Casitas, 139 disturbances and 

two found properties.  

 

Revenue Reporting 

The 2016/2017 unaudited monthly figures below available to date illustrate all Lake Casitas Recreation 

Area’s revenue collected in the respective months (operations, concessions, Water Adventure, etc.) per 

the District’s Financial Summary generated by the Finance Manager.    

 

$0.00

$100,000.00

$200,000.00

$300,000.00

$400,000.00

$500,000.00

$600,000.00

$700,000.00

$800,000.00

Ju
ly

Se
pt

Nov
Ja

n
M

ar

FY 16/17

FY 15/16

 
 

LCRA TOTAL REVENUE 
    

 

 

 



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

07/18/17

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EGZW8 10/25/2024 $833,918 $803,739 2.014% 10/25/2016 3.85% 2617

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 31331VWN2 4/13/2026 $915,363 $874,266 1.901% 5/9/2016 4.19% 3145

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFK71 3/9/2026 $853,136 $831,818 2.790% 3/28/2016 3.99% 3111

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFYH4 2/8/2027 $1,014,406 $992,190 3.000% 3/24/2016 4.75% 3440

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EGWD 9/29/2027 $694,629 $673,381 2.354% 11/17/2016 3.23% 3671

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A3DL 9/8/2023 $1,577,920 $1,524,720 1.486% 10/13/2016 7.31% 2210

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 6/14/2019 $1,362,654 $1,355,117 1.625% 10/3/2012 6.49% 686

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A0EN 12/10/2021 $537,766 $520,895 1.107% 5/9/2016 2.50% 1582

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A5R35 6/13/2025 $765,512 $736,836 2.875% 2/19/2016 3.53% 2845

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313383YJ4 9/8/2023 $468,140 $446,030 1.203% 7/14/2016 2.14% 2210

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A5VW6 7/10/2025 $1,024,572 $1,018,410 2.360% 5/10/2017 4.88% 2872

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130AIXJ2 6/14/2024 $929,891 $879,189 2.875% 8/2/2016 4.21% 2486

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF 6/11/2021 $647,582 $641,413 5.625% 1/16/2013 3.07% 1403

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA 11/17/2017 $1,012,117 $1,013,130 5.125% 1/3/2012 4.85% 119

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB 1/13/2022 $675,316 $679,591 2.375% 9/8/2014 3.26% 1615

*TB Federal National Assn 31315P2J7 5/1/2024 $797,965 $758,104 1.721% 5/1/2016 3.63% 2443

*TB Federal National Assn 3135G0ZR 9/6/2024 $1,475,905 $1,437,631 2.625% 5/25/2016 6.89% 2568

*TB Federal National Assn 3135G0K3 4/24/2026 $2,529,437 $2,447,825 2.125% 5/25/2016 11.73% 3156

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE1 7/15/2018 $1,140,096 $1,150,136 1.375% 7/6/2010 5.51% 357

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF 1/15/2020 $1,140,208 $1,171,699 1.375% 11/18/2015 5.61% 897

*TB US Treasury Note 912828WE 11/15/2023 $768,367 $799,127 2.750% 12/13/2013 3.83% 2277

Accrued Interest $113,830

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $21,164,897 $20,869,075 99.98%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $451 $451 0.86% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,871 $2,871 0.80% Estimated 0.01%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $21,168,219 $20,872,396 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $21,178,877 $20,909,572

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $19,606,454 $19,901,199

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $719,956 $719,956

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $2 $2 0.19%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $21,888,177 $21,592,354

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $23,934,244 $24,228,990

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	7-26-17 Agenda
	7-12-17 Min
	Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District
	Board Meeting Held
	July 12, 2017

	Bills
	Accept WSC Proposal_Board Memo_Final
	Agreement-version Ojai System to board 7-20-2017
	Exhibit A
	Ojai System Scope of Work Final
	Scope of Work for Ojai System      July 19, 2017
	1- Project Management
	1.1 Kick-Off Meeting
	Deliverable:  A draft agenda, a data request log, a work plan for the project, a project contact list, and a project schedule with milestones provided to the District at least two days before the meeting.  A list of action items and assignments will b...

	1.2 Project Meetings
	Deliverable:  An agenda provided to the District at least two days before the meeting.  A list of action items and assignments will be provided within one week following the meeting.

	1.3 Status Update Conference Calls
	1.4 Project Schedule
	Deliverable:  A rolling four (4) week schedule and an action item/key decision log.

	1.5 QA/QC

	2- Data Collection and Review of Water System Operational Data
	2.1 Data Request
	Deliverable:  An updated data request log.

	2.2 Data Review
	Deliverable:  A summary of existing data sets and any identified data gaps.

	2.3 System Evaluation Criteria
	2.4 Spatial Demand Allocation
	2.5 Future Demand Projection
	2.6 Evaluation Criteria and Demand Allocation TM
	Deliverable:  Draft and final technical memorandum in electronic PDF format.

	2.7 Database Development (Optional)

	3- Hydraulic Model Development
	3.1 Model Creation
	3.2 Model Calibration
	3.3 Model Development and Calibration TM
	Deliverables:  Draft and final technical memorandum in electronic PDF format.
	Hydraulic model in electronic format.  Casitas will obtain the software necessary to operate the model separately.


	4- System CapaCITY Analysis
	4.1 Existing System Deficiencies
	4.2 Future System Deficiencies
	Deliverable:  Working maps showing existing and future system deficiencies.


	5- Operational Analysis
	5.1 Extended Period Simulation
	5.2 Water Age Analysis
	5.3 System Reliability Analysis

	6- Condition based assessmet
	6.1 Condition-Based Data Review
	6.2 WSC Field Visits
	6.3 Leak Detection Services
	6.4 Tank Inspection
	6.5 Condition-Based Improvement Planning
	6.6 Well Assessment

	7- Capital Improvement Plan
	7.1 Preliminary Project List
	7.2 Project Description Sheets
	Deliverables:  Draft and revised project list.  Project description sheets for recommended projects.


	8- Report Preparation, Presentations, and Training
	8.1 Water Master Plan Preparation
	8.2 Presentation
	8.3 Hydraulic Model Training
	Deliverables:  Six paper copies and an electronic PDF copy of the draft Water Master Plan.  Eight spiral-bound copies and an electronic PDF copy of the final Water Master Plan.  Electronic files for the final hydraulic model.


	Assumptions


	Casitas Schedule
	Final Fee Table Water Master Plan Ojai System
	Fee Estimate

	2017 Standard Rate Schedule
	Tank Inspection Proposal_final
	Leak Detection Proposal (1)
	casitas well assessment project scope july 2017
	CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT WELLFIELD ASSESSMENT PROJECT
	SCOPE OF WORK


	Rec Minutes 07142017
	LCRA05.May.2017
	LCRA06.June.2017
	Investment Report 07-18-17



